
Adopted:  June 13, 2024 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD  

 
MINUTES 

 
APRIL 25, 2024 

 
  
 PAGES 
 
  1 Election of Officers 
 
  1 Alternate Members 
 
  1 Work Session 

 Master Plan Public Hearing 

 Minor Site Plan Review discussion 

 Commercial Development discussion 

 Mixed-Use discussion 

 HOP Grant Committee Update 

 Selectmen’s Report 

 Issues for Consideration 

 Media Questions 

 Public Comment 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 

Page 1 of 5 
 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 25, 2024 
 
 
A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, April 25, 2024, beginning at 
6:04 p.m. at the Conway Town Office, Conway, NH. Those present were: Chair, Benjamin 
Colbath; Selectmen’s Representative, Steven Porter; Eliza Grant; Bill Barbin; Ted Phillips; Town 
Planner, Ryan O’Connor; and Assistant Planner, Holly Whitelaw.   
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. Porter moved to nominate Benjamin Colbath as Chair, seconded by Mr. Barbin. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Mr. Porter moved to nominate Ailie Byers as Vice Chair, seconded by Mr. Phillips. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Mr. Porter moved to nominate Erik Corbett as Secretary, seconded by Mr. Barbin. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Porter moved to nominate Nat Lucy as a Planning Board alternate for a one-year term, 
seconded by Ms. Grant. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
WORK SESSION 
 
Master Plan Public Hearing:  
 
This was the second Public Hearing for the updated Master Plan. Mr. O'Connor noted public 
comment was received at the last Planning Board work session and clarifying changes were 
made. He reviewed the purpose of the Master Plan, and the process involved in creating and 
approving it.  
 
Alex Belensz of SE Group reviewed the proposed changes and edits, which were primarily made 
for clarity purposes. He noted three recommendations were added.  
 
Chair Colbath asked for Board comment. He explained the rationale for two changes that were 
made, including clarification about adding a Planning Staff position with a focus on housing 
development. 
 
Chair Colbath opened public comment at 6:18 pm. 
 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 25, 2024 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Janine Bean, Master Plan Steering Committee member, commended the Committee on their 
work. She reviewed the five major challenges listed in the document, including creating an 
advisory committee to clarify the purpose of the Master Plan.  
 
Bill Hounsell, former Conway Village Commissioner and Selectman, said he has been involved 
in every Master Plan workshop since he filled those roles. He noted he worked for water 
precincts, and highlighted programs that provide loans and grants. He said the Master Plan needs 
to be moved forward as quickly as possible on wastewater infrastructure. He said a water and 
wastewater master plan is needed and a bond to implement it. He said the success of the Master 
Plan hinges on the transparency of the elected officials. He said transportation is the second 
important ingredient and explained why.  
 
Amy Snow, resident, hopes that development is done thoughtfully for traffic flow in Center 
Conway. She hopes that Conway Lake is protected via water and sewer. She said development 
adds more people on top of the tourists, which increases traffic. She said public transportation 
needs to be incorporated to reduce traffic. She asked if the Blue Loon was still operational.  
 
John Colbath said there is misunderstanding in the public as to whether the Master Plan will be 
presented as a Warrant Article to the voters. He asked about the Planning Board's next step. He 
asked if there is a plan to interface with the School District. He said he was impressed by Bill 
Hounsell's knowledge and complimented him on speaking to the Board. He said the Blue Loon 
operates on a reservation basis. He thanked the Board for their hard work.  
 
Mr. O'Connor explained the process for approving the Master Plan. Chair Colbath noted the 
Master Plan will not be placed on the Warrant, as it does not include zoning ordinances. He said 
there are two committees that are targeting initiatives in the Master Plan.  
 
Mr. Porter said the next step is to address the zoning ordinances. He noted that there are traffic 
problems in many places that need to be discussed. He said young families need to be able to 
return to the Valley.  
 
Ms. Grant described the short- and long-term planning that is addressed in the Master Plan.  
 
Bill Hounsell said the Capital Committee needs to be active in pursuing funds. He asked who the 
Drinking Water Protection Committee reports to and said it needs to be described so the public 
understands what it is. He noted state and federal grants will be needed to implement the Master 
Plan.  
 
Amy Snow, resident, urged the Board to talk to experts as they redo the zoning ordinances. She 
said improving the town will cost money, which requires the involvement of the Budget 
Committee. She said the entire town needs to work toward a common goal.  
 
Jason Gagnon, Master Plan Steering Committee member, complimented everyone involved in 
working on the Plan. He said he was impressed by the diversity of the community that came 
together to find common ground that was in the best interest of the community. He said this spirit 
needs to continue as the Plan is implemented. He said it was perceived that the Master Plan 
played a role in the recent School Board decision and he disagreed with how it was presented. He 
said the plan should not be used for divisive purposes. He said if the plan is viewed as a divisive 
instrument, it will not be supported by the town.  



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 25, 2024 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Mr. Porter said people are upset that it was publicly stated that the Master Plan was the reason a 
certain Board changed their opinion. He said that was not the rationale behind the Master Plan; it 
is a town-wide document. He said the intention is to promote growth in the entire Valley. He 
hopes the School Board would entertain conversation with town Boards regarding the future 
growth of the town.  
 
Chair Colbath explained the decision made by the School Board regarding the school closure. He 
said there is no timeline for promoting growth in Center Conway. He noted there was a School 
Board member on the Steering committee. He said the Master Plan was not used to change a 
vote. 
 
Ms. Grant said she would like the Master Plan to be kept separate from difficult budget 
decisions.    
 
Bill Hounsell said the challenge for the elected officials on the Planning Board is to control their 
emotions and not let them get in the way of making decisions. He said the Board is elected to 
speak for the people.  
 
Amy Snow, School Board, thanked Janine Bean for attending the School Board meeting. She 
said Ms. Bean was not trying to influence the vote. She said Ms. Bean made sure that the Board 
was informed that the Master Plan piece was there. She said the Master Plan was not the 
deciding factor of the Board's vote; there were many factors considered. She said there will 
always be naysayers looking for something to blame and this time, that may be the Master Plan.  
 
Tom Eastman, Conway Daily Sun, clarified that his article did not state the Master Plan was the 
deciding factor, but just one of many factors in the School Board's decision.  
 
Chair Colbath closed public comment at 7:17 pm. 
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Ms. Grant, to adopt the Master Plan as amended. 
Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Ms. Grant, to disband the Master Plan Steering 
Committee. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
The Board took a recess. 
 
Minor Site Plan Review discussion: 
 
Mr. O'Connor asked the Board to consider bringing back minor site plan review, which would 
lower the cost of and simplify the application process for small businesses and smaller projects. 
It would also bring the Staff more into the process, to help them overcome barriers. He reviewed 
the criteria included in this proposal.  
 
The Board agreed this would streamline the process and make it more affordable.  
 
Chair Colbath asked for public comment; there was none. 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 25, 2024 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Mr. O'Connor identified the individuals who would comprise a technical review committee that 
would be responsible for reviewing applications, and the process involved. It would include Staff 
and a Planning Board member. Ms. Whitelaw noted that engineering firms currently have little 
availability.  
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Ms. Grant, to hold a public hearing for Minor Site 
Plan Review on May 23, 2024. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Commercial Development discussion: 
 
Mr. O'Connor explained the goal of this zoning ordinance is to set certain square footage to be 
developed by right. Anything beyond that square footage would be subject to additional 
restrictions, with long-term residential units and redevelopment being exempt. The Board 
discussed defining "long term." Mr. Porter asked for a legal opinion and Mr. O'Connor said he 
would research possible definitions.  
 
Chair Colbath asked for public comment. Wryan Fiel said RSA 48 identifies short-term and 
vacation rentals. He suggested starting there to define long-term rentals.  
 
Mr. O'Connor reviewed the criteria a project must meet. The Board discussed other criteria that 
could be included. There was an extended discussion around increasing setbacks and greenspace, 
and limiting the size of buildings. 
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Ms. Grant, to hold a public hearing on May 23, 
2024, on increasing the greenspace to 40% for new developments. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
Tom Eastman, Conway Daily Sun, clarified if the Board was discussing limiting building size 
and was told this was the case. Chair Colbath said the Board is continuously trying to keep 
development within the scale of the expectations of the community. Mr. Porter noted that now 
the Master Plan is done, the Board can address zoning inadequacies. The Board also discussed 
moving the map lines to scale in the commercial zone and limiting signage to aesthetically 
pleasing ground-level signs.  
 
Mr. O'Connor will incorporate the suggestions of the Board into this ordinance.  
 
Mixed-Use Discussion:  
 
Mr. O'Connor asked for Board input on how to address new mixed-use development in terms of 
zoning ordinances and site plans.  
 
Mr. Porter said this should be incorporated in the Village districts. The Board discussed whether 
allowing residential units in the commercial districts is appropriate, considering the need for 
housing. They discussed refining the definitions of workforce and affordable housing to 
eliminate misconceptions.  
 



Adopted: June 13, 2024 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 25, 2024 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Tom Eastman, Conway Daily Sun, asked how the apartment units where the playhouse was 
located have worked out that were approved in the '90s. Mr. Porter said he believed they are 
being used for housing; however, there are other sites in town that will not be as beneficial. 
 
Mr. O'Connor will take these discussions into consideration and continue to work on this 
ordinance.  
 
HOP Grant Committee Update:  
 
Mr. O'Connor said he is meeting with the SE Group on April 30, 2024, for an update on their 
research.  
 
Selectmen’s Report:  
 
Mr. Porter said the Selectboard did not meet, so there was nothing to report. 
 
Wryan Fiel asked if Mr. Porter wanted to update the Board on the Selectboard's discussion 
regarding selling the Town Hall Annex. Mr. Porter said he does not have enough information, so 
did not want to discuss it at this point. Chair Colbath stressed it would be helpful for the Planning 
Board to have a voice on this subject.  
 
Issues for Consideration:  
 
Mr. O'Connor noted they are pursuing technical assistance from EPA to help develop a plan to 
pursue funding for infrastructure improvements.  
 
Media Questions: 
 
Tom Eastman, Conway Daily Sun, said he believed he defended himself adequately earlier in the 
meeting regarding the article about the School Board decision.  
 
Public Comment 
 
John Colbath said there has been discussion of selling the Town Hall Annex, but it is still up in the 
air. He said the Selectboard authorized the Town Manager to investigate the feasibility of selling 
the property and report back to them. He said at the appropriate time, there will be further 
discussion with interested parties, including the Planning Board, and presumably a public hearing 
will be held.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:48 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Beth Hanggeli 






















